



The Outreach and Education services is made up of Provider Field Representatives located throughout California and includes the Small Provider Billing Assistance and Training Program staff, who are available to train and assist providers to efficiently submit their Medi-Cal claims for payment. See the below additional tools and free services available to your provider community.

Medi-Cal Learning Portal (MLP)

Explore the Medi-Cal Learning Portal (MLP) that offers Medi-Cal providers and billers selfpaced online training about billing basics, related policies and procedures; new initiatives and any significant changes to the Medi-Cal program.

How can you get started using the MLP?

- First time users must complete a one-time registration at www.learn.medi-cal.ca.gov
- After logging in, you will be able to RSVP for training events or view eLearning courses
- Refer to the Medi-Cal Learning Portal (MLP) Job Aid or the Medi-Cal Learning Portal (MLP) User Guide for detailed instructions

How can you benefit from using the MLP?

- Significantly reduce billing errors by learning billing best practices
- Quizzes that test your knowledge
- Practice your skills using interactive activities

Free Services for Providers

Provider Seminars and Webinars

Provider Training Seminars and Webinars offer basic and advanced billing courses for all provider types. Seminars also offer a free billing assistance called the Claims Assistance Room (CAR). Providers are encouraged to bring their more complex billing issues and receive individual assistance from a Provider Field Representative. The dates and locations for the annual provider training seminars and webinars can be found on the events calendar in the MLP tool and in the News area on www.medi-cal.ca.gov.

Provider Field Representatives

Receive one-on-one assistance from Provider Field Representatives who live and work in cities throughout California. Provider Field Representatives are available to visit providers at their office to assist with billing needs and/or provide custom billing training to office staff.

Small Provider Billing Assistance and Training Program

The Small Provider Billing Assistance and Training Program is one-on-one billing assistance for one year to providers who submit fewer than 100 claim lines per month and would like some extra help. For more information about how to enroll in the Small Provider Billing Assistance and Training Program, call (916) 636-1275 or 1-800-541-5555.

All of the aforementioned services are available to providers at no cost!

Table of Contents

Table of Contents	ii
Rural Health Clinics and Federally Qualified Health Centers	1
Introduction	1
Description	2
RHC and FQHC Enrollment	2
Covered Service	4
RHC and FQHC: Medi-Services	7
Reconciliations	14
Telehealth Overview	15
Definitions	15
RHC and FQHC Billing Code Sets	18
COVID-19 Vaccine Administration for FQHC and RHC Providers	24
Medi-Cal Managed Care Billing Code Services	25
Informational Lines	27
Resource Information	29
Appendix	1
Acronyms	1

Rural Health Clinics and Federally Qualified Health Centers

Introduction

Purpose

The purpose of this module is to provide information for billing services rendered by Rural Health Clinics (RHCs) and Federally Qualified Health Centers (FQHCs).

Module Objectives

- Define RHC and FQHC
- Illustrate accessing Transaction Services
- Describe Scope of Coverage
- Identify billing code sets
- Review billing examples
- Provide References

Acronyms

A list of current acronyms is located in the Appendix section of each complete workbook.

Page updated: November 2023

Description

RHCs and FQHCs provide ambulatory health care services to recipients in rural and non-rural areas.

RHCs

RHCs extend Medicare and Medi-Cal benefits to cover health care services provided by clinics operating in rural areas. Specifically trained primary care practitioners administer the health care services needed by the community when access to traditional physician care is difficult. RHCs are located in federally designated medically underserved areas (MUA) or medically underserved population (MUP) locations as specified by the Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA).

RHCs must meet certain federal requirements to be certified. A RHC employs or contracts with nurse practitioners, physician assistants and certified nurse midwives who provide services at the clinic at least fifty percent of the time the RHC is open. RHC physicians may work less than full-time if the physician is present in the clinic during operating hours.

FQHCs

FQHCs were added as a Medi-Cal provider type in response to the federal Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (OBRA) of 1989.

RHC and FQHC Enrollment

Providers should enroll in the RHC and FQHC programs through the Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) Audits and Investigations (A&I) Division. As facilities enroll in the RHC and FQHC programs, they will receive a new National Provider Identifier (NPI) and their current provider numbers will be inactivated.

Page updated: November 2023

Authorized Physicians

For FQHC and RHC purposes, the following providers are defined as "physicians":

Authorized Physician Table

Type of Physician	Program Requirements
General Medicine or	The physician is authorized to practice medicine and surgery
Osteopathy	by the state while acting within the scope of his/her license.
Podiatrist	The physician is authorized to practice podiatric medicine by
	the state while acting within the scope of his/her license.
Optometrist	The physician is authorized to practice optometry by the state
	while acting within the scope of his/her license.
Chiropractor	The physician is authorized to practice chiropractic by the
	state while acting within the scope of his/her license.
Dental Surgeon (Dentist)	The physician is authorized to practice dentistry by the state
	while acting within the scope of his or her license.
Medical Resident	A medical resident in a federally or state sponsored Teaching
	Health Center Graduate Medical Education (THCGME)
	Program, under the supervision of a designated teaching
	physician, who is acting within his/her Postgraduate Training
	License (PTL) issued by the Medical Board of California.

Page updated: November 2023

Covered Service

RHCs and FQHCs may bill for the following:

- Physician services
- Physician assistant services
- Nurse practitioner services
- Certified nurse midwife services
- Visiting nurse services (as defined in *Code of Federal Regulations* [CFR], Title 42, Section 405.2416)
- Comprehensive Perinatal Services Program (CPSP) practitioner services if the clinic has an approved application on file with the California Department of Public health, Maternal, Child and Adolescent Health Division
- Licensed clinical social worker services
- Associate clinical social worker (ASW) services (when supervised by a licensed billable behavioral health practitioner
- Marriage and family therapist services
- Associate marriage and family therapist (AMFT) services (when supervised by a licensed billable behavioral health practitioner)
- Clinical psychologist services
- Optometry services
- Acupuncture services
- Registered dental hygienist services

Page updated: November 2023

Dental Services Defined

Dental services are a covered benefit for FQHC and RHC providers. They may render dental services in a face-to-face encounter between a billable treating provider and an eligible patient when the services are within the scope of the treating provider's practice, comply with the <u>Medi-Cal Dental Manual of Criteria (MOC) and Schedule of Maximum Allowances (SMA)</u> and are determined to be medically necessary pursuant to California Welfare and Institutions Code (W&I code), Section 14059.5.

Claims submitted with per-visit local code 03 (dental services) may be submitted on the same claim form as other services billed with HIPAA-compliant billing code sets and informational lines.

Authorization and Documentation Requirements

RHCs and FQHCs services do not require a *Treatment Authorization Request* (TAR), but providers are required to maintain in the patient's medical record the same level of documentation that would be needed for authorization approval.

Documentation for all RHC and FQHC encounters must be sufficiently detailed as to clearly indicate the medical reason for the visit.

Required documentation includes:

- A complete description of the medical services provided,
- The full name professional title of the person providing the service,
- The pertinent diagnosis(es) at the conclusion of the visit, and
- Any recommendations for diagnostic studies, follow up or treatments, including prescriptions.
- **Note:** Documentation must be kept in writing for a minimum of three years from the date of service.

DHCS A&I Division may recover payments that do not meet the requirements under CCR, Title 22, Section 51458.1 "Cause for Recovery for Provider Overpayments" and Section 51476, "Keeping and Availability of Records."

Page updated: November 2023

Comprehensive Perinatal Services Program (CPSP) Services: TAR and Reporting Requirements

Claims for Comprehensive Perinatal Service Program (CPSP) services in excess of the basic allowances will not be denied for the absence of a TAR. RHCs and FQHCs, however, must maintain in the patient's medical record the same level of documentation that would be needed for authorization approval. DHCS A&I Division may recover payments that do not meet the requirements under CCR, Title 22, Section 51458.1 "Cause for Recovery for Provider Overpayments" and Section 51476, "Keeping and Availability of Records."

Required documentation includes:

- Expected date of delivery,
- Clinical findings of the high-risk factors involved in the pregnancy,
- Explanation of why basic CPSP services is not sufficient,
- Description of the services being requested,
- Length of visits and frequency with which the requested services are provided, and
- Anticipated benefit of outcome of additional services.

The recipient's medical records should be available for review by DHCS. Refer to the specific claim completion section in the appropriate Part 2 Medi-Cal provider manual for more instructions.

Comprehensive Services for Pregnant Recipients

Pregnant recipients - regardless of age, aid code and/or scope of benefits are eligible to receive all dental procedures listed in the Denti-Cal Manual of Criteria (MOC) that are covered by the Medi-Cal program, as long as all MOC procedure requirements and criteria are met. Recipients are also eligible to receive these services for 60 days postpartum including any remaining days in the month in which the 60th day falls.

RHC and FQHC: Medi-Services

Medi-Service limitations (two services per month) apply when rendered in an RHC or FQHC.

"Visit" Defined

A visit is a face-to-face encounter or an interaction using a telehealth modality (synchronous video, synchronous audio-only or asynchronous store and forward) between a RHC or FQHC Medi-Cal recipient and a physician, physician assistant, nurse practitioner, certified nurse midwife, clinical psychologist, licensed clinical social worker, marriage and family therapist, licensed acupuncturist, registered dental hygienist or visiting nurse (as defined in CFR, Title 42, Section 405.2416), referred to as a "health professional," to the extent the services are reimbursable under the Medi-Cal State Plan and the interactions meet the applicable standards of care.

A face-to-face encounter or an interaction using a telehealth modality with a Comprehensive Perinatal Services Program (CPSP) practitioner also qualifies as a visit.

Page updated: November 2023

Qualifying Visits

Reimbursable Criteria Table

One Visit	Encounters with more than one health care professional, and multiple encounters with the same health care professional that take place on the same day at a single location, constitute a single visit.
Two Visits	More than one visit may be counted on the same day (which may be at a different location) when a patient – after the first visit – suffers illness or injury that requires another health diagnosis or treatment or when a patient is seen by a health care professional or CPSP practitioner and also receives dental services on the same day.

Note: FQHCs/RHCs (Provider Type 035) in the counties of San Mateo, Sacramento, and Los Angeles will be able to bill for differential payments for one medical and one dental visit for the same recipient on the same day of service.

Clinic visits, at which the patient receives services "incident to" physician services (for example, a laboratory or X-ray appointment), do not qualify as reimbursable visits.

Page updated: November 2023

This is a sample only. Please adapt to your billing situation.

1234	MEDICA MAIN ST TOWN CA		5							3a PAT. CNTL # b. MED. REC. # 5 FED. TAX NO.	6 :	STATEMENT FROM	COVERS PER	OD 7 GH	4 TYPE OF BIL 731
ATIENT N	NAME	DOE, JAN	NE		9 P)	ATIENT ADDRESS	a								
			1 Decouper		b			-	0.010171011			c	d		0
BIRTHDAT		EX 12 DATE	ADMISSION 13 HR 14 TV	PE 15 SRC	16 DHR 17 S	TAT 18 19	20	21	CONDITION C 22 23	ODES 24 2	5 26 27	28 2	STATE 30		
52120			33 (DCCURRENCE	34	OCCUEBENCE	3	5	OCCURRENCE	SPAN	36	OCCURRENC	F SPAN	37	
OCCU DDE	DATE	32 OCCURRENCE CODE DATE	CODE	DATE	E CO	DE DATE	C	ODE	FROM	THROUGH	CODE	FROM	THROU	JGH	
								39	VALUE C	ODES	40 VALUE CODE AM	E CODES IQUNT	41 CODE	VALUE C	ODES
								a	DE AMO		GODE AN	100NT	:	AMO	UNI .
								b							
								С							
								d							
REV. CD.	43 DESORIPTION					CPOS / RATE / HIPPS O	ODE		45 SERV. DATE	46 SERV. UN	ITS 47 TOTA	L CHARGES		ON-COVERED O	HARGES 4
521						1015			010323	1		200	00		
					Z	1034			010323						
													1		
01	PAGE	OF		1		CREATI			010623			200		50700	
PAYER N				51 HEALTH	PLAN ID		2 REL INFO	8BN. 64	PRIOR PAYMENT	56 EST.	AMOUNT DUE	56 NPI	01234	56789	
//P IVI	EDI-CAL										200	00 57 OTHER			
												PRVID			
INSURED'	'S NAME			591	P.REL 60 INS	URED'S UNIQUE ID			61	GROUP NAME			JRANCE GRO	UP NO.	
						00000A95	001								
TREATME	ENT AUTHORIZATI	ON CODES			6	34 DOCUMENT CONT	ROLNU	JMBER			65 EMPLOYER	NAME			
					~				_		-			68	
D1D1	1D1D1	A	<u> </u>		4					- F	G	_	<u>H</u>	00	
ADMIT		70 PATIENT REASON DX				71	PPS CODE		72	<u> </u>			G	73	
DV	PRINCIPAL PROCE	DURE 3.	OTHER PF		p. b.	OTHER PRO		E	72 ECI 75	76 ATTENDING	№ 12345	67800	C QUAL	4	
P	JE I	DATE	CODE	DATI		CODE		IATE	1	LAST	12345	01030	FIRST		
COL	1	JRE d.	OTHER PF CODE	ROCEDURE	Q.	OTHER PRO	CEDUR	E MTE		77 OPERATING	NPI		QUAL		
COD	OTHER PROCEDU			DAI						LAST			FIRST		
COD	OTHER PROCEDU	DAIE													
COL				81CC a						78 OTHER	NPI		QUAL		
COL		DALE		81CC a b						78 OTHER	NPI		QUAL FIFST		
		DATE									NPI				

Example: Medical visit pregnancy service claim example.

Page updated: November 2023

Coverage Limitations

FQHC/RHC providers may be reimbursed for up to:

• Two visits per day, per recipient, if one is a medical or mental health visit, and the other is a dental visit.

These visits do not require medical justification in field 80 *Remarks* of the *UB-04* claim form.

• An additional visit is allowed if the recipient suffers illness or injury that requires a different health diagnosis or treatment from the original visit.

Medical justification is required in field 80 *Remarks* of the UB-04 claim form.

Note: For recipients who are enrolled in a dental Managed Care Plan in Sacramento County or Los Angeles County, dental services are billed with the Medi-Cal Managed Care Differential Billing Code set. For recipients not enrolled in a dental Managed Care Plan, a dental visit should be billed using per-visit local code 03.

Page updated: November 2023

Treatment Authorization

A *Treatment Authorization Request* (TAR) is not required for services rendered by FQHC providers, but the following conditions apply:

Conditions Table

FQHC and	Providers must maintain the same level of documentation that is needed for
RHC	authorization approval in the patient's medical record. DHCS A&I Division
	may recover reimbursements that do not meet the requirements under
	California Code of Regulations (CCR), Title 22, Section 51458.1, "Cause for
	Recovery for Provider Overpayments" and Section 51476, "Keeping and
	Availability of Records."

Note: Documentation must be kept in writing for a minimum of three years from the date of service.

Page updated: November 2023

Medi-Service Limitations

FQHC and RHC

The following Medi-Services are services that are limited to a maximum of two services per month. However, additional services can be provided based upon medical necessity. All services listed are subject to CCR, Title 22, Section 51309.

- Acupuncture
- Occupational Therapy
- Speech Therapy
- Audiology
- Chiropractor Services

Notes:

Page updated: November 2023

Billing Services for Health Care Recipients

RHCs and FQHCs must bill the appropriate Health Care Plan (HCP) when rendering services to HCP recipients. The CA-MMIS Fiscal Intermediary does not accept these claims unless the billed services are contractually excluded from the plan. Providers should contact the plan for plan-specific prior authorization and billing information.

If a Medi-Cal patient presents themselves to the clinic for treatment and the clinic finds the patient is enrolled in a Medi-Cal Managed Care Plan, or if located in Los Angeles County, San Mateo County, or Sacramento County and the patient is enrolled in a Medi-Cal Dental managed care plan, the clinic can render services and submit a claim to Medi-Cal. However, the RHC and FQHC facility is required to redirect the patient to their in-network managed care provider and document this referral in the patient's medical/dental records.

While Medi-Cal beneficiaries enrolled in both Medi-Cal and Medi-Cal Dental managed care plans are required to be treated by in-network providers, except in emergencies or other isolated instances, RHC and FQHC facilities that provide services in these circumstances must maintain proof of payment or denial from the managed care plan.

FQHC Billing Instructions for Dual-Eligible Members

The Affordable Care Act (ACA) mandated the transition from the Medicare FQHC cost-based reimbursement system to a Medicare reimbursement methodology that is unique for each FQHC.

This methodology may result in Medicare reimbursement for a given service that is greater or less than the current Medi-Cal Prospective Payment System (PPS) rate for the FQHC.

Consequently, a FQHC seeking reimbursement for services rendered to Medi-Cal recipients who are also covered by Medicare shall not bill Medi-Cal for Medicare cost-sharing amounts, or crossover reimbursements, when the Medicare reimbursement is equal to or exceeds the Medi-Cal PPS rate, for the following per-visit codes:

- Crossover claims
- Managed care differential rate
- Capitated Medicare Advantage plans

Page updated: November 2023

Reconciliations

DHCS is required to perform an annual reconciliation of Managed Care, Medicare crossover, and Medicare Advantage Plan visits to ensure the FQHC or RHC was paid an amount equal to its PPS rate. RHC & FQHC providers are reimbursed an amount equal to the PPS rate.

Crossover Claim and Managed Care Differential Rate billing code set rates may be adjusted to reflect the difference more accurately between the Medicare and HCP reimbursements and the PPS rate after A&I reviews the Reconciliation Request form.

Providers are notified when the *Annual Reconciliation Request* forms (DHCS 3097) are due 150 days after the provider's fiscal year ends and should be directed to the DHCS website for the most current forms and instructions. For additional questions, email <u>clinics@dhcs.ca.gov</u>.

Page updated: November 2023

Telehealth Overview

Policy related to telehealth is established pursuant to Assembly Bill 415 (Logue, Chapter 547, Statutes of 2011), known as the Telehealth Advancement Act of 2011 *Welfare and Institutions* Code 14132 100. Providers should refer to the *Medicine: Telehealth* section in the appropriate Part 2 manual for additional information. Updated references and instructions regarding telehealth and virtual telephonic communication policy are available for FQHCs, RHCs, Tribal FQHCs and IHS-MOA 638 clinic providers.

Definitions

For the purposes of this policy, the following definitions shall apply:

- **Telehealth and Other Terms**: For definitions of "telehealth," "audio-only," "asynchronous store and forward," "synchronous interaction," "distant site" and "originating site," providers may refer to the Medicine: Telehealth section in the appropriate Part 2 manual.
- Visit: Providers should refer to "Visit Defined" in Part 2 Rural Health Clinics (RHCs) and Federally Qualified Health Centers (FQHC) rural 5.
- **Note:** Telehealth services must meet all billing requirements that would have applied if the applicable services were delivered via a face-to-face encounter with a billable provider and meet the applicable standard of care. An FQHC patient who receives telehealth services shall otherwise be eligible to receive in-person services from that FQHC pursuant to Health Resources Services Administration requirements.

The Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) announced that the federal Public Health Emergency (PHE) for COVID-19, declared under Section 319 of the Public Health Service Act, expired on May 11, 2023. FQHC, RHC, providers can no longer bill HCPCS code G0071 for dates of services on or after the public health emergency ended.

Additionally, providers are encouraged to refer to the *Medicine: Telehealth* section in the Part 2 provider manual for billing with required telehealth modifiers.

Page updated: November 2023

Telehealth Modifiers for FQHC and RHC Providers

Table of Telehealth Modifiers for FQHC and RHC Providers

Modifier	Description
93	Synchronous, Telephone or Other Interactive Audio-only Telecommunications Systems
95	Synchronous, Interactive Audio and Telecommunications Systems
GQ	Asynchronous Store and Forward Telecommunications Systems

Page updated: November 2023

This is a sample only. Please adapt to your billing situation.

1234	MEDICAL CLINIC MAIN STREET TOWN CA 900005555					33. PAT. CNTL # b. MED. REC. # 5 FED. TAX NO	6 S	TATEMENT COVER	4 DF 73 S PERIOD 7 HROUGH 7
PATIENT N									
ATTENT N	NAME 8 DOE, JANE		9 PATIENT ADDR	HESS a				c d	e
BIRTHDAT		SSION HR 14 TYPE 15 SRC	16 DHR 17 STAT 18	19 20	21 CONDITI-	DN CODES 23 24	25 26 27	28 29 ACDT 28 STATE	
12419		22 OCCUPPEND	24 000000	NCE 25	00001888	NCE SPAN	~ ~ ~	COURRENCE SPAN	37
DE	URRENCE 32 OCCURRENCE DATE CODE DATE	33 OCCURRENC CODE DAT	E 34 OCCUERS E CODE	ENCE 35 DATE CO	DE FROM	NCE SPAN THROUGI	H CODE	FROM	THROUGH
					39 VAL CODE	JE CODES AMOUNT	40 VALUE CODE AMO	CODES	41 VALUE CODES CODE AMOUNT
					a				
					b c				
					d				
REV. CD.	43 DESORIPTION		44 HCPCS / RATE /	HIPPS CODE	45 SERV. DA	TE 46 SERV. U	INITS 47 TOTAL	CHARGES	48 NON-COVERED CHARGES
521			T1015SE		0103		1	100 00	
			G044295		0103				
			9616095 9920595		0103				
			5520095		0103				
			_						
			_						
01	PAGE OF		CRI	EATION D	ATE 0104	23 TOTA		100.00	
PAYER NA	JAME	51 HEALTH	PLAN ID	52 REL 1 INFO	SASG. BEN. 54 PRIOR PAYM	ENTS 55 ES	T. AMOUNT DUE	56 NPI 01	23456789
/P MI	IEDI-CAL						100 (
								OTHER PRV ID	
		59	RIFEL 60 INSURED'S UNIC			61 GROUP NAME		62 INSURANC	E GROUP NO.
NSURED*	2'S NAME								
NSURED'	D'S NAVIE		9000000	A95001					
INSURED'	P'S NAME		9000000	A95001					
					(RFD)		85 EMDI (MEDI	Jawe	
	D'S NAME			A95001	/BER		65 EMPLOYER 1	JAME	
					/BER		65 EMIPLOYER N	JAME	
TREATME	ENT AUTHORIZATION CODES				/BER		65 EMPLOYER N	JAME	80
TREATME		B			IBER	E			69
TREATMEI D1D1		B	64 DOCUMEN	D 71PPS	E	F		H	88 73
TREATMEI D1D1			64 DOOUMEN	T CONTROL NU	E N EQ	F O a 76 ATTENDIN	G P b	HQ	
			E Document		Е [20] те 75	76 ATTENDIN LAST	G P b 3 № 123456	67890	CUAL 73
		В ОНЕН РАССЕЛИЕ ОПЕН РАССЕЛИЕ ОПЕН РАССЕЛИЕ ОТЕР	E Document	T CONTROL NU	Е [20] те 75	76 ATTENDIN LAST 77 OPERATIN	G P b 3 № 123456	57890	273 QUAL 73 RST QUAL
		OTHER PROCEDURE DE DAT	E Document		Е [20] те 75	76 ATTENDING LAST 77 OPERATING LAST	G NFI 12345(67890	73 OUAL 78T OUAL 78T
		OTHER PROCEDURE DAT 81CC a	E Document		Е [20] те 75	76 ATTENDING LAST 77 OPERATING LAST 78 OTHER	G P b 3 № 123456	67890	73 OUAL 155 OUAL 155 CUAL CUAL
D1D1 ADMIT DX FI COD		OTHER PROCEDURE DE DAT	E Document		Е [20] те 75	76 ATTENDING LAST 77 OPERATING LAST	G NFI 12345(57890 FIE FIE	73 OUAL 78T OUAL 78T

Example: Telehealth billing example.

RHC and FQHC Billing Code Sets

RHC and FQHC facilities use the following all-inclusive billing code sets and per visit codes:

Revenue Code	Procedure Code and Modifier	Description	Explanation
0521	T1015	Medical, per visit	Requires medical justification for more than one visit per recipient per day
0521	G0466	Crossover claims – FQHC/RHC clinic visit New patient	Requires the Medicare EOMB/MRN/RA be attached to the claim. A deductible is not included in the crossover reimbursement. Do no complete <i>Condition Codes</i> fields (Boxes 24-30) for Medicare status.
0521	G0467	Crossover claims – FQHC/RHC clinic visit Established patient	Requires the Medicare EOMB/MRN/RA be attached to the claim. A deductible is not included in the crossover reimbursement. Do no complete <i>Condition Codes</i> fields (Boxes 24-30) for Medicare status.
0521	G0468	Crossover claims – FQHC/RHC clinic visit Initial Preventative Physical Exam (IPPE) or Annual Wellness Visit (AWV)	Requires the Medicare EOMB/MRN/RA be attached to the claim. A deductible is not included in the crossover reimbursement. Do no complete <i>Condition Codes</i> fields (Boxes 24-30) for Medicare status.

Table of All-Inclusive Billing Code Sets

Page updated: November 2023

Revenue Code	Procedure Code and Modifier	Description	Explanation
0522	G0466	Crossover claims – Home visit New patient	Requires the Medicare EOMB/MRN/RA be attached to the claim. A deductible is not included in the crossover reimbursement. Do no complete <i>Condition Codes</i> fields (Boxes 24-30) for Medicare status.
0522	G0467	Crossover claims – Home visit Established patient	Requires the Medicare EOMB/MRN/RA be attached to the claim. A deductible is not included in the crossover reimbursement. Do no complete <i>Condition Codes</i> fields (Boxes 24-30) for Medicare status.
0522	G0468	Crossover claims – Home visit Initial Preventative Physical Exam (IPPE) or Annual Wellness Visit (AWV)	Requires the Medicare EOMB/MRN/RA be attached to the claim. A deductible is not included in the crossover reimbursement. Do no complete <i>Condition Codes</i> fields (Boxes 24-30) for Medicare status.
0524	G0466	Crossover claims – Visit covered Part A stay at SNF New patient	Requires the Medicare EOMB/MRN/RA be attached to the claim. A deductible is not included in the crossover reimbursement. Do no complete <i>Condition Codes</i> fields (Boxes 24-30) for Medicare status.
0524	G0467	Crossover claims – Visit covered Part A stay at SNF Established patient	Requires the Medicare EOMB/MRN/RA be attached to the claim. A deductible is not included in the crossover reimbursement. Do no complete <i>Condition Codes</i> fields (Boxes 24-30) for Medicare status.

Page updated: November 2023

D			
Revenue Code	Procedure Code and Modifier	Description	Explanation
0524	G0468	Crossover claims – Visit (covered Part A stay) at SNF Initial Preventative Physical Exam (IPPE) or Annual Wellness Visit (AWV)	Requires the Medicare EOMB/MRN/RA be attached to the claim. A deductible is not included in the crossover reimbursement. Do no complete <i>Condition Codes</i> fields (Boxes 24-30) for Medicare status.
0525	G0466	Crossover claims – FQHC visit (not covered Part A stay) at SNF New patient	Requires the Medicare EOMB/MRN/RA be attached to the claim. A deductible is not included in the crossover reimbursement. Do no complete <i>Condition Codes</i> fields (Boxes 24-30) for Medicare status.
0525	G0467	Crossover claims – FQHC visit (not covered Part A stay) at SNF Established patient	Requires the Medicare EOMB/MRN/RA be attached to the claim. A deductible is not included in the crossover reimbursement. Do no complete <i>Condition Codes</i> fields (Boxes 24-30) for Medicare status.
0525	G0468	Crossover claims – FQHC visit (not covered Part A stay) at SNF Initial Preventative Physical Exam (IPPE) or Annual Wellness Visit (AWV)	Requires the Medicare EOMB/MRN/RA be attached to the claim. A deductible is not included in the crossover reimbursement. Do no complete <i>Condition Codes</i> fields (Boxes 24-30) for Medicare status.
0527	G0466	Crossover claims – FQHC visiting nurse to home New patient	Requires the Medicare EOMB/MRN/RA be attached to the claim. A deductible is not included in the crossover reimbursement. Do no complete <i>Condition Codes</i> fields (Boxes 24-30) for Medicare status.

Page updated: November 2023

Revenue Code	Procedure Code and Modifier	Description	Explanation
0527	G0467	Crossover claims – FQHC visiting nurse to home Established patient	Requires the Medicare EOMB/MRN/RA be attached to the claim. A deductible is not included in the crossover reimbursement. Do no complete <i>Condition Codes</i> fields (Boxes 2430) for Medicare status.
0527	G0468	Crossover claims – FQHC visiting nurse to home Initial Preventative Physical Exam (IPPE) or Annual Wellness Visit (AWV)	Requires the Medicare EOMB/MRN/RA be attached to the claim. A deductible is not included in the crossover reimbursement. Do no complete <i>Condition Codes</i> fields (Boxes 2430) for Medicare status.
0900	G0469	Crossover claims – Mental health visit New patient	Requires the Medicare EOMB/MRN/RA be attached to the claim. A deductible is not included in the crossover reimbursement. Do no complete <i>Condition Codes</i> fields (Boxes 2430) for Medicare status.
0900	G0470	Crossover claims – Mental health visit Established patient	Requires the Medicare EOMB/MRN/RA be attached to the claim. A deductible is not included in the crossover reimbursement. Do no complete <i>Condition Codes</i> fields (Boxes 2430) for Medicare status.

Page updated: November 2023

Revenue Code	Procedure Code and Modifier	Description	Explanation
0521	92004	Clinic visit optometry – Facility-specific all- inclusive rate New patient	None.
0521	92014	Clinic visit optometry – Facility-specific all- inclusive rate Established patient	None.
3101	99205	Community-Based Adult Services (CBAS) Initial assessment day (with subsequent attendance)	Limit of up to three assessment days. Same center may not bill for assessment days again within 12 months of the last day of service. If the participant transfers to another center, up to three assessment days may be billed by the second center without the 12-month restriction of the previous center's assessment.
3101	T1015	Community-Based Adult Services (CBAS) Initial assessment day (without subsequent attendance)	A statement explaining why the participant did not attend the center subsequent to assessment must be entered in the <i>Remarks</i> area of the claim (samne limitations as for the other billing code sets associated with revenue code 3101).
3103	None	Community-Based Adult Services (CBAS) Regular day of service	Minimum four-hour day at the center, excluding transportation time. Refer to <i>Community-Based Adult Services</i> (<i>CBAS</i>) section of the appropriate Part 2 manual.
3103	T1023	Community-Based Adult Services (CBAS) Transition day	Limit of five days per participant's lifetime. A statement that the <i>Physician</i> <i>Authorization and Medical Information</i> form is on file at the center must be entered in the <i>Remarks</i> area of the claim.

Page updated: November 2023

Note: CBAS is not an FQHC or RHC service; however, CBAS is a Medi-Cal waiver benefit that an FQHC or RHC may provide and is reimbursable at the CBAS rate. The CBAS benefit billing codes and rates are described in the Community-Based Adult Services section of the appropriate Part 2 provider manual.

For a reimbursable CBAS visit, FQHCs and RHCs must render a service for a minimum of four hours per billable day, pursuant to requirements in the Community-Based Adult Services provider manual section.

COVID-19 Vaccine Administration for FQHC and RHC Providers

Effective January 1st, 2023, RHC and FQHC providers may receive reimbursement for administration of COVID-19 vaccines during vaccine-only encounters.

Vaccine-only encounters are visits where the administration of the vaccine does not otherwise meet the criteria for a qualifying office visit. These vaccine-only encounters are not reimbursable at the Prospective Payment System (PPS) rate for FQHC/RHC providers.

Reimbursement

RHC and FQHC providers may receive reimbursement at the Medicare National Equivalent Rates for COVID-19 vaccines administered during a vaccine-only encounter. RHC and FQHC providers should refer to the DHCS website for billing guidance and effective dates.

Medi-Cal Managed Care Billing Code Services

FQHC/RHC providers should use the following code set when billing for services rendered to Medi-Cal Managed Care Plan enrollees and the service is covered by the plan, including dental services for recipients enrolled in a dental Managed Care Plan (applicable to Sacramento County, San Mateo County, and Los Angeles County only).

Enrolled Recipients Table

National Code Descriptions	Revenue Code	Procedure Code and Modifier
Managed care differential rate, covered by Managed Care Plan and rendered to recipients enrolled in Medi-Cal managed care plans and dental Managed Care Plans	0521	T1015 SE

Managed Care Differential Rate Billing Scenario

FQHC/RHC Providers

This is a sample only. Please adapt to your billing situation.

John Doe visited a Rural Health Clinic (RHC) for evaluation of his recent chest pain. He is enrolled in a Medi-Cal Managed Care Plan (MCP) and the service is covered under the plan. The RHC bills the MCP for the encounter and submits a claim to Medi-Cal for the managed care differential rate, with revenue code **0521**, procedure code with modifier **T1015SE** and an informational line specific to his visit, which in this case is procedure code **99214**.

This code set is used for FQHC/RHC providers.

Notes:

Page updated: November 2023

This is a sample only. Please adapt to your billing situation.

UPTO 140 SE	ECOND STREET					b. MED. REC. #						7	711
ANYT	OWN CA 958235555					5 FED. TA	X NO.	6 STAT FRC	TEMENT CO	OVERS P THE	PERIOD ROUGH	7	
ATIENT NA			A DATISTIC ADDRESS										
	E, JOHN		9 PATIENT ADDRESS	a				c		d			ę
BIRTHDATE		YPE 15 SRC 16 DHR	17 STAT 18 19	20 21	CONDITION 1 22	N CODES 23 24	25	26 27	28 5	ACDT 30 TATE	0		-
08241	1980												
OCCUR DDE	RRENCE 32 OCCURRENCE 33 DATE CODE DATE CODE	OCCURRENCE DATE	34 OCCUFIRENCE CODE DATE	35 CODE	OCCURREN FROM	CE SPAN THB	ROUGH CC	DDE FR	OM	SPAN TH	ROUGH	37	
				3	89 VALUE CODE AN	E CODES MOUNT	40 CODE	VALUE COL E AMOUN	DES	41 C		ALUE GODES AMOUNT	
				а		100.00					U	7.00	
				b									
				c d									
REV. CD.	43 DESCRIPTION		44 HCPCS / RATE / HIPPS COL		45 SERV. DATE	46 8	ERV. UNITS	47 TOTAL CH	ARGES		48 NON-COV	ERED CHARGES	3 49
	MANAGED CARE DIFFERENT	IAL RATE	T1015 SE		100122	2	1		45	00			
0521			99214		100122	2	00		0	00			
										_			
			1										
D01	PAGE OF		CREATIO				OTALS						
		SI HEALTH PLAN IC		EL 53 ASG. C	: : :54 PRIOR PAYME!		DTALS 55 EST. AMOUN	TDUE _		00	34567	89	
PAYER NAM		SI HEALTH PLAN IC	D 52 F	EL 53 ASG. C				AT DUE 45:00	45 56 NPI 57	00	34567	89	
PAYER NAM		SI HEALTH PLAN IC	D 52 F	EL 53 ASG. C				· · ·	45 66 NPI 57 0THER	00	34567	89	
DAYER NAM	ME MEDI-CAL		D SQ F	EL 53 ASG. C		NTS	55 EST. AMOUN	· · ·	45 56 NPI 57 0 THER PRV ID	00			
DAYER NAM	ME MEDI-CAL		D BE IN SET OF STREETS UNIQUE ID	10 88N. 6			55 EST. AMOUN	· · ·	45 56 NPI 57 0 THER PRV ID	00	34567		
DAYER NAM	ME MEDI-CAL		D SQ F	10 88N. 6		NTS	55 EST. AMOUN	· · ·	45 56 NPI 57 0 THER PRV ID	00			
DAYER NAM	ME MEDI-CAL		D BE IN SET OF STREETS UNIQUE ID	10 88N. 6		NTS	55 EST. AMOUN	· · ·	45 56 NPI 57 0 THER PRV ID	00			
PAYER NAM	ME MEDI-CAL		D BE IN SET OF STREETS UNIQUE ID	16L 53 ASG 6 88N 6		NTS	55 EST. AMOUN	· · ·	45 56 NPI 57 0 THER PRV ID 62 INSUF	00			
O/P M	MEE MEDI-CAL		D 1920 60 INSURED'S UNIQUE ID 9000000A9501	16L 53 ASG 6 88N 6		NTS	55 EST. AMOUN	45 00	45 56 NPI 57 0 THER PRV ID 62 INSUF	00			
O/P M	MEE MEDI-CAL		D 1920 60 INSURED'S UNIQUE ID 9000000A9501	16L 53 ASG 6 88N 6		NTS	55 EST. AMOUN	45 00	45 56 NPI 57 0 THER PRV ID 62 INSUF	00			
PAYER NAM	ME MEDI-CAL I'S NAME INT AUTHORIZATION CODES		D 1920 60 INSURED'S UNIQUE ID 9000000A9501	16L 53 ASG 6 88N 6		NTS	55 EST. AMOUN	45 00	45 56 NPI 57 0 THER PRV ID 62 INSUF	00	BROUP NO.		
PAYER NAM O/P M INSURED'S TREATMEN	ME MEDI-CAL I'S NAME INT AUTHORIZATION CODES		D 1920 60 INSURED'S UNIQUE ID 9000000A9501	16L 53 ASG 6 88N 6		NTS	55 EST. AMOUN	45 00 EMPLOYER NAM	45 56 NPI 57 0 THER PRV ID 62 INSUF	00	BROUP NO.		
PAYER NAM O/P M INSURED'S TREATMEN	ME MEDI-CAL IS NAME INT AUTHORIZATION CODES					EI GROUP N	55 EST. AMOUN	45 00	45 56 NPI 57 0 THER PRV ID 62 INSUF	00 012 RANCE G	3ROUP NO.		
PAYER NAM O/P M INSURED'S TREATMEN D1D11		SOPPEL C				61 GROUP N	NAME 85	45 00 EMPLOYER NAM	45 56 NPI 57 0 THER PRV ID 62 INSUF	00 012 RANCE G	aroup No.		
PAYER NAM O/P M INSURED'S TREATMEN D1D11						EI GROUP N	NAME 85	45 00 EMPLOYER NAM	45 56 NPI 57 0 THER PRV ID 62 INSUF		6 73		
DIDIDI		SOPPEL C	D IS INCLUE ID 9000000A9500 64 DOCUMENT CONTR 0	CL 19 ARG 6 SEN 6 CL 19 ARG 6 SEN 6 SEN 6 CL 19 ARG 6 SEN 6		EI GROUP N EI GROUP N	NAME 85	45 00 EMPLOYER NAM	45 59 hPl 0THER PFV ID 62 INSUF 62 INSUF 82 NSUF 82 NS	00 012 RANCE G	6 73 141		
DIDIDI		SOPPEL C		CL 19 ARG 6 SEN		61 GROUP 1 61 GROUP 1 70 GROUP 1	NAME 85	45 00 EMPLOYER NAM	45 59 hPl 0THER PFV ID 62 INSUF 62 INSUF 82 NSUF 82 NS	000 012 RANCE G C OULD FIRST OLD	aroup No.		
			D IS INCLUE ID 9000000A9500 64 DOCUMENT CONTR 0	CL 19 ARG 6 SEN		61 GROUP 1 61 GROUP 1 61 GROUP 1 76 ATTEI 1.48T 77 OPER LAST	NAME 85 NAME 85 NDING PP	45 00 EMPLOYER NAM G b 123456	45 59 hPl 0THER PFV ID 62 INSUF 62 INSUF 82 NSUF 82 NS	00 012 RANCE G C QU FIRST QU QU			
DIDIDI		SOPPEL E	D IS INCLUE ID 9000000A9500 64 DOCUMENT CONTR 0	CL 19 ARG 6 SEN		61 GROUP N 61 GROUP N 61 GROUP N 76 ATTEH LAST 77 OPER LAST 78 OTHE	NAME 85 NAME 85 NDING PP	45 00 EMPLOYER NAM G b 123456	45 59 hPl 0THER PFV ID 62 INSUF 62 INSUF 82 NSUF 82 NS	Ance G Bance G First Gue First Gue	AROUP NO.		
			D IS INCLUE ID 9000000A9500 64 DOCUMENT CONTR 0	CL 19 ARG 6 SEN		61 GROUP 1 61 GROUP 1 61 GROUP 1 76 ATTEI 1.48T 77 OPER LAST	NAME 65 NAME 65 NDING NPI NDING NPI	45 00	45 59 hPl 0THER PFW ID 62 INSUF 62 INSUF 82 NSUF 82 NS	00 012 RANCE G C QU FIRST QU QU	3ROUP NO. 73 JAL T JAL T JAL		

Example: Billing Managed Care Differential Rate Code Sets for FQHC/RHC.

Informational Lines

Informational lines should be included when billing for FQHC/RHC services.

An informational line is an associated line item or line items listed immediately following the HIPAA-compliant billing code set used to bill the face-to-face encounter with the recipient. Informational lines contain only the specific CPT-4 Level I or HCPCS Level II code(s) which identifies the actual service(s) provided and **are not separately reimbursed.** When submitting informational lines, providers should remember the following:

- The *Revenue Code* field (Box 42) on the information claim detail line must be a 4-digit revenue code. Blank (spaces) and zeros are accepted for Computer Media Claims (CMC).
- The Service Date field (Box 45) is optional.
- The Service Units field (Box 46) on the informational line may contain the number of service units provided for the procedure code or may be zeroes.
- The *Total Charges* field (Box 47) for each informational line must always be zeroes on paper claim forms; blank (spaces) or zeroes are accepted in the *Total Charges* field for CMC.

For additional CMC billing instructions, refer to the CMC Technical Manual.

Note: Computer Media Claims (CMC) submitted with an informational line on the first detail line of the claim will be rejected. CMC claim detail line 01 must include only HIPAA-compliant billing code sets.

When billing an electronic (CMC) claim, if the addition of informational lines causes the claim to exceed 22 lines, the claim must be split, and services billed on separate claims. Electronic claims that exceed 22 claim lines with informational lines will be denied in their entirety.

A new claims submission test must be submitted when software is upgraded, or the submission method changes for CMC.

Report any testing issues to the CMC Help Desk at 1-800-541-5555 and select the option Point of Service (POS), internet, Laboratory Services Reservation System (LSRS) and CMC inquiries.

Page updated: November 2023

This is a sample only. Please adapt to your billing situation.

1234	MEDICAL CLINIC MAIN STREET TOWN CA 900005555						3a PAT. CNTL # b. MED. REC. # 5 FED. TAX	(NO.	6 ST/	TEMENT C	OVERS PERI		огы 731
									FF	OM .	THROU	311	
TIENT	NAME 3 DOE, JANE		9 PATIENT ADDRESS	ŝ									_
RTHDA	ATE 11 SEX 12 DATE 13 HR 14 TV	DE 15 SDC 16 DH	0 R 17 STAT 18 11			CONDITION (CODES				d ACDT 30 TATE		e
231		PE 15 SRC 10 DA	R 17 STAT 18 11	9 2	21	22 23	3 24	25	26 27	28 [*] S	TATE		
		DCCURRENCE DATE	34 OCCURRENCE CODE DATE		35 CODE	OCCURRENCE FROM	E SPAN	SUGH CO	00 50	CURRENCE ROM	SPAN THROU	37 GH	
		Det	SOBE DATE		0002	111014		500an 00			million	un	
						VALUE (DDE AMO	CODES DUNT	40 CODE	VALUE CI AMOL	JNT	41 CODE	VALUE CODES AMOUNT	s .
					a b								
					с								
					đ								
EV. CD.	43 DESCRIPTION		44 HCPCS / RATE / HIPPS	CODE		45 SERV. DATE	46 SE	RV. UNITS	47 TOTAL C	HARGES	48 N	IN-COVERED CHARGE	ES 4
521			T1015SE			010323		1		500	00		_
			Z1034 G0442			010323	_						
			81003QW			010323							
			96160			010323							
							_		_		_		_
							_						
01	PAGE OF		CREAT			010523		TALS		500			
AVER N	IEDI-CAL	51 HEALTH PLAN	ID	S2 REL. INFO	BEN. 54	PRIOR PAYMENT	FS 5	5 EST. AMOUN	500 0		01234	56789	
	IEDI-CAL								500 0	OTHER			
										PRV ID			
NSUREE	D'S NAME	69 P.REL	60 INSURED'S UNIQUE IE)		6	I GROUP N	AME		62 INSUR	RANCE GROU	JP NO.	
			9000000A9	5001									
BEATM	IENT AUTHORIZATION CODES		64 DOGUMENT CO		UMBER			85	EMPLOYER NA	ME			
		_										_	
D1D	1D1D1 A B	C	D	_		E	E		G		H	68	
DMIT			M	1 PPS	-	79	0		P		Q	73	
JX	70 PATIENT REASON DX PRINCIPAL PROCEDURE DE CODE 3. CODE	ROCEDURE	D. OTHER PI	1 PPS CODE ROCEDU	RE	72 ECI 75	76 ATTEN		0	7900	C QUAL		
CO	PRINCIPAL PROCEDURE 3. OTHER P DE DATE CODE	DATE	CODE		DATE	-	LAST	unida (NPI	123456	1890	FIRST		
£0	OTHER PROCEDURE d OTHER P DE DATE CODE	ROGEDURE	e. OTHER PI CODE	ROCEDU	RE DATE		77 OPERA	ATING NPI			QUAL		
			0002				LAST				FIRST	1	
	(8	81CC a					78 OTHER	R NPI			QUAL		
REMARK											F1007		
REMARK		b					LAST				FIRST		
REMARK		b c d					79 OTHEF	R NPI			FIRST		

Example: Informational lines claim example.

Resource Information

References

The following reference materials provide Medi-Cal program and eligibility information.

Provider Manual References

Part 1

OBRA and IRCA (obra)

Part 2

Community-Based Adult Services (CBAS) (community)

Medicare/Medi-Cal Crossover Claims: Outpatient Services (medi cr op)

Medicare/Medi-Cal Crossover Claims: Outpatient Services Billing Examples (medi cr op ex)

Medicine: Telehealth (medne tele)

Non-Specialty Mental Health Services: Psychiatric and Psychological Services (non spec mental)

Rural Health Clinics (RHCs) and Federally Qualified Health Centers (FQHCs) (rural)

Rural Health Clinics (RHCs) and Federally Qualified Health Centers (FQHCs) Billing Examples (rural ex)

Additional Resources

All of these resources can be found at the Medi-Cal and DHCS websites:

5010 CMC Billing and Technical manual

DHCS Approved State Plan Amendments (SPA) - Approved SPA

DHCS Managed Care All Plan Letters (APL) – <u>Managed Care All Plan Letters</u> – 1998 to Current

Appendix

Acronyms

Acronym	Description
A&I	Audits and Investigations
ADHC	Adult Day Health Care
AEVS	Automated Eligibility Verification System
BIC	Benefits Identification Card
CCR	California Code of Regulations
CCS	California Children's Services
CFR	Code of Federal Regulations
CHDP	Child Health and Disability Prevention
CHIP	Children's Health Insurance Program
CIN	Client Index Number
СМС	Computer Media Claims
CPSP	Comprehensive Perinatal Services Program
DHCS	Department of Health Care Services
EOMB	Explanation of Medicare Benefits
EPSDT	Early and Periodic Screening, Diagnostic and Treatment
FI	Fiscal Intermediary; contractor for DHCS responsible for claims processing, provider services, and other fiscal operations of the Medi-Cal program
FQHC	Federally Qualified Health Center
FRADS	Federally Required Adult Dental Services
НСР	Health Care Plan
НМО	Health Maintenance Organization
IHS/MOA	Indian Health Services, Memorandum of Agreement
LCSW	Licensed Clinical Social Worker

Page updated: November 2023

	5 1
Acronym	Description
LTC	Long Term Care
MFCC	Marriage, Family and Child Counselor
MRMIB	Managed Risk Medical Insurance Board
MRN	Medical Remittance Notice
MUA	Medically Underserved Area
MUP	Medically Underserved Population
NPI	National Provider Identifier
OBRA	Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act
PCC	Primary Care Clinic
PHP	Prepaid Health Plan
PHS	Public Health Service
POE	Proof of Eligibility
POS	Point of Service
PPS	Prospective Payment System
RA	Remittance Advice
RAD	Remittance Advice Details
RHC	Rural Health Clinic
RTD	Resubmission Turnaround Document
SMA	Schedule of Maximum Allowance
SOC	Share of Cost
TAR	Treatment Authorization Request
TCN	TAR Control Number
THP	Tribal Health Program
W&I	Welfare and Institutions
	1

Enter Notes Here

